
CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

OCTOBER 20, 2014 

6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION /  Pastor Timothy Conaway Restoration Place Church 

 

 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:      Council meeting minutes / October 6, 2014    

                                                     Council Work Session minutes / October 13, 2014 

 

PRESENTATION:     Lions Club International / Ron Mitchell 

PRESENTATION:     Beautification Quarterly Awards:  District 1:  Terry Thompson Chevrolet 

                                                                                              District 2:  Certpro Painting 

PROCLAMATION:   America Recycles Day 

 

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway    

            Review minutes /  October 13
th
  

            1.)   Ordinances:     

                    a.)  FY 2015 Capital & Personnel Budget / Ordinance 2014-46 (2
nd

 Read) 

                    b.)  Reclassification of Finance Director Position / Grade 36 to Grade 40 / Ordinance 2014-49 

                    c.)  Reclassification of Civic Center Director Position / Ordinance 2014-50 

                    d.)  Appropriation of Funds:  Maize’s Gulch Emergency Watershed Protection on Private Property / 

                          Ordinance 2014-48 

                    e.)  Appropriate Funds: Donated Property / Park Drive and Pine Hill Road / Ordinance 2014-51 

                    f.)  Garbage Collection Fee Increase / Amend Ordinance 2002-34 / Ordinance 2014-47 

 

           2.)   Resolutions: 

                  a.)   2015 Severe Weather Sales Tax Holiday / Resolution 2014-53 

 

          3.    Financial Reports: 

 Treasurers Report / September 2014 

 Sales & Use Tax Collection / August 2014 

 Lodging Tax Collections / August 2014 

     

B.      BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis     

          Review minutes / October 6
th
  

             1.)   Discuss donation of properties 

                  a.)   Park Drive and Pine Hill  Road (Ordinance appropriating funds for associated fees / Ordinance 2014-51 ) 

                  b.)   Santa Rosa (Across from Fastime Gas Station) and Highway 98 (East Side by Chevron Station) 

           2.    Acquisition of Property 

                  a.)   TimberCreek (Off Woodrow Lane) 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell   

   Review minutes / October 8
th
  

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott   

    Review minutes / October 8
th
  

       

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune    

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones      

         Review minutes / August 7
th
 and Staff  Report / October 2

nd
 meeting 

 

 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 1



 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                       OCTOBER 20, 2014                                  PAGE  2 
 

 B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway   

   C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis                

   D.  Library Board - Lake  
   E.   Planning Commission – Scott     
   F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

          MOTION: To authorize staff to advertise for Request for Proposals (RFP) as outlined in the RFP 

                              for recreation facilities 

 
G.  Utility Board - Fry  

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report         

     B.  City Attorney’s Report:  
            MOTION: To authorize the Mayor to execute contracts that bind the City of Daphne up to, but not exceeding, 

                                 a value of $15,000, as long as the purpose of the contract has been funded or budgeted by the 

                                 the City Council until such time as the Council enacts an ordinance relating to this authority. 

 

     C.  City Clerk’s Report 

           1.)   Event Permit / Run for Shep / 5K / January 24, 2015 

           2.)   NLC Voting Delegate for the business meeting being held Saturday, November 22, 2014 / Austin, Texas 

   

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)   Approving the City of Daphne’s Participation in the State of Alabama 

        Severe Weather Preparedness Tax Holiday for the Year 2015. . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-53 

 

    

ORDINANCES:  

        

        2
ND

 READ            

a.)   Adopting the FY 2015 Personnel and Capital Budget. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-46 

 

        1
ST

 READ 

a.)   Amending Ordinance 2002-34 / Garbage Collection and Amending the 

       FY 2015 Budget for the Increased Garbage Collection Fee. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-47 

 

b.)   Appropriating Funds: Emergency Watershed Protection on Private 

        Property: Mazie’s Gulch & Palmetto Court (Creekside). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  /Ordinance 2014-48 

 

c.)   Job Reclassification:  Finance Director. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-49 

 

d.)  Job reclassification: Civic Center Director / Reclassify the Civic  

       Center Director to the Convention/Visitor’s Bureau & Civic  

       Center Director. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-50 

 

e.)   Appropriation of Funds: Appraisal, Survey and Closing Fees  

       Associated with Donated Property Located at Park Drive and 

       Pine Hill Road. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-51 

 

9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT FRY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 3



OCTOBER 6, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

There being a quorum present Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Reverend Dan Morris with Daphne United Methodist Church gave the invocation. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk;  Jay 

Ross, City Attorney; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire 

Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Suzanne 

Henson, Senior Accountant; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Jonathan Vickery, 

Fire Department; Officer Jaimie Huffman, Police Department; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; 

Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee and DRA; Tomasina Werner, Beautification Committee; 

Mickey Boykin, Daphne Museum; Bob Segalla, Utility Board; Kevin Boucher, Adams & Reese, LLC; 

Rusty Russell, Adams & Reese, LLC; Ray Moore, HMR. 

 

Absent: Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Richard Merchant, 

Building Official; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Adrienne 

Jones, Planning Director. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:    

September 15, 2014 Council Meeting Minutes 

There were no corrections to the September 15, 2014 council meeting minutes and the minutes stand 

approved as written. 

 

September 23, 2014 Special Called Council Meeting Minutes 

Councilwoman Conaway asked that the September 23, 2014 minutes be amended to include the reason 

she abstained on the vote for the increase in contribution for Community Action as she is on the board. 

 

Councilman President Fry asked that the second the motion to adopt ordinance 2014-44 be amended that 

Councilman Scott could not make the motion and second the motion.  

 

The September 23, 2014 Special Called Council meeting minutes stand approved as amended. 

 

PROCLAMATION:   National Breast Cancer Awareness Month  

 

Councilwoman Conaway read the proclamation and the Mayor presented it to Daphne Firefighter/EMT 

Jonathan Vickery who is in charge of collecting contributions for the Fire Department. 

 

 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 4



OCTOBER 6, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

PRESENTATION:   Winner of Daphne Firefighters Breast Cancer Awareness T-Shirt Contest from  

                                     Daphne High School 

 

Fireman/EMT Jonathan Vickers awarded Sidney Sain and Rebecca Boatwright with a T-Shirt and a $25 

gift card for designing the front and back of this year’s Breast Cancer Awareness T-Shirt. 

 

PROCLAMATION:   National Fire Prevention Week / October 5-22, 2014 

 

Fire Chief James White read the proclamation declaring the week of October 5-11, 2014 as Fire 

Prevention Week in the City of Daphne. 

 

PROCLAMATION:    National Domestic Violence Awareness Month / Ms. Joann Sheils, Executive  

                                        Director for the Lighthouse  

 

Council President Fry read and presented the proclamation to Ms. Joann Sheils, Executive Director for 

the Lighthouse. 

 

PROCLAMATION:   National Dyslexia Awareness Month 

 

Councilman John Lake read and presented the proclamation to Mrs. Suzanne Efird and her daughter 

Caroline. 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The next meeting will be Monday, October 23th at 4:00 p.m. 

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE - Davis 
The committee met before the council meeting and the minutes will be in the next packet.  They covered 

12 items at that meeting of which council will be seeing some of them in the future. 

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The next meeting will be Wednesday at 4:30 p.m. 

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The next meeting will be Wednesday after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The September 15
th

 Public Works minutes are in the packet along with the September 3
rd

 Beautification 

Committee minutes and August 11
th

 Daphne Museum minutes. 

 

 

 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 5



OCTOBER 6, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

MOTION BY Robin LeJeune to take affirmative action regarding the Violation of the Right-of-

Way ordinance 2004-23 as presented in the packet: 

 
1. Direct Public Works to take all action necessary to fully comply with the USACE Violation File #SAM-

2014-00614-GAC – Sections: a, b, c & d as described in the September 5, 2014 violation letter which 

entails: 

a.    A complete delineation of all impacted waters of the United States 

b.    A restoration plan consisting of plan view and cross-sectional drawings of the proposed restoration    

       area 

c.    A list of proposed plantings to restore impacted wetland area 

d.    A proposed monitoring plan verifying the success of all restoration over a three year period  

 

2.    Supporting the issuance of a Municipal Offense Ticket (M.O.T.) to the Fannon’s for the violation of           

       the City of Daphne Right-Of-Way (ROW) Ordinance No.: 2004-23. 

 

3.    Direct City Legal Counsel to take the following action concerning the Fannon’s:  

a.    Send a Cease and Desist Letter 

b.    File notice that all appropriate legal action will be taken to recover all expense and damages to the   

       City from them 

c.    Prepare liens against their property for the cost of the remediation 

 

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

                                                    MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

The next meeting will be October 20
th
. 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No report. 

 

B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The minutes for the September 24
th

  meeting are in the packet, and the next meeting will be October 22
th

 

at 5:30 p.m. 

 

C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The next meeting will be October 27
th

 at 6:00 p.m. in the Executive Conference room.  Councilman 

Davis pointed out that in August the IDB, at the request of the Baldwin County Economic Development 

Alliance, agreed to expend $15,000 for a study that was requested and required to pursue a $439,000 

grant from the state dealing with industrial development. 

 

D.   Library Board – Lake 

The next meeting will be Thursday, October 9
th

 at 4:00 p.m. at the Library. 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 6



OCTOBER 6, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

     E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The August 21
st
 minutes are in the packet along with a staff report regarding the September 25

th
 

meeting.  The Site Review meeting will be Wednesday, October 15
th

 at 8:30 p.m., and the Planning 

Commission meeting will be Thursday, October 23
rd

 at 5:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers. 

 

     F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

The next meeting will be Wednesday at 6:30 p.m.  The council will be discussing revisions to the RFP at 

the work session on October 13
th

.  

 

    G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The August 27
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The board will be having a budget meeting Wednesday at 

6:30 p.m. at the Central Services building. 

 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

 A.  Mayor’s Report 

Mayor Haygood explained the significance of the pink and purple bows. He thanked the Beautification 

Committee and Public Works staff, Michele, Denise and Meredith with the Fire Department, for their 

hard work on them. He said “good job” so that the city can stay active in the arena.  

 

Trione Sports Complex Agreement with the Baldwin County Board of Education: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scot to authorize the Mayor to fully execute a lease agreement on 

behalf of the city with the Baldwin County Board of Education for the Trione Sports Complex 

property.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

Mayor Haygood reported that there have been a number of property issue there as some donations, as 

well as, some people approaching the city about buying property that was presented at the Buildings and 

Property meeting this evening.  He brought one to council’s attention, no action required by council 

given that there was some prior consent with the TAP grant, but it has been a long road to get to this 

point, but the Gator Alley Boardwalk expansion project that has been on hold while negotiating and 

dealing with the Alabama Department of Transportation’s cumbersome process of acquisition of 

property, but that has finally been satisfied and will proceed to closing in the coming weeks.  Legal has 

reviewed it and feels no additional action is required.  The closing will probably occur before the next 

council meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 7



OCTOBER 6, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

B.  City Attorney’s Report 

Contract with Adams and Reese for Federal and State Government Relations, Grant and Consulting 

Services. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the proposal and authorize the Mayor to fully execute an 

agreement on behalf of  the city with Adams & Reese for Federal and State Government Relations, 

Grant and Consulting Services.  Seconded by Councilman  LeJeune. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

C.   Department Head Comments 

James White – Fire Chief – reported that Saturday Dan Castrillo’s name will be added to the Alabama 

Fallen Firefighters Memorial. 

 

Margaret Thigpen Civic Center Director – complemented her staff for a job well done this year.  She 

reported that they were up $10,000 from where they were last year.  She said it was a great year, and it 

takes a team effort. 

 

 

     D.   City Clerk’s Report  
           1.)  ABC License / Allocations Distributing, LLC / 100 – Wholesale Table Wine Only – 24% or Less 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to approve the ABC License for Allocations Distributing, LLC / 100 – 

Wholesale Table Wine Only – 24% or Less.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 
           2.)  Events Permit / Mama Mia Cook Off / November 1, 2014 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to approve the Events Permit for Mama Mia Cook Off / 

November 1, 2014.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Rod Drummond – Ridgewood Avenue – spoke regarding a sign in the council chambers that says 

“In God We Trust.” 

 

Mrs. Barbara Comstock – 107 Wildwood Drive - spoke regarding the landscape project on Randall 

Avenue and Highway 98 and the trees that were cut down. 

 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 8



OCTOBER 6, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

Mr. Mark Russell – Belrose Avenue – spoke regarding making a side walk on Lea Avenue so the street 

can be wheelchair accessible. 

 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         
a.)    In Support of the Create A Clean Water Future Stormwater 

        Education Outreach. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-52 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Scott to waive the reading of Resolution 2014-52.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Resolution 2014-52.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

        2
ND

 READ      

a.)   Amending the Land Use and Development Ordinance 2011-54 

       Appendix “H”  /  Revision to Zoning Map. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-38 

 

b.)   Appropriating Funds:  Donette Loop Properties Drainage Repair. . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-40 

 

c.)   Appropriating Funds:  Lancaster Way Drainage Crossing. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-41 

 

d.)   Appropriating Funds:  Design Engineering for Sewer Projects. . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-42 

 

e.)   An Ordinance Adopting the Rules of Procedure in All Instances 

        for Meetings of the City Council / Repealing 2013-21. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-43 

 

 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2014-38, 2014-40, 2014-41, 2014-42 

and 2014-43.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune.            

 

                                                MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 9



OCTOBER 6, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-38.   Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt  Ordinance 2014-40 and 2014-41.  Seconded by Councilman 

Lake.   

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-42.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2014-43.  Seconded by Councilman 

Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-43.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

After discussion with the City Attorney: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to amend the motion to include amending Section XIV (F) to end 

the sentence after the word chairman and delete “along with the department head associated with 

the committee”.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

VOTE ON AMENDMENT 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

VOTE ON ORIGINAL MOTION AS AMENDED 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

ORDINANCES 2014-46 AND 2014-47 ARE 1
ST

 READ 

 

Council President Fry stated that council would consider the Capital and Personnel Budget at the 

Finance Committee meeting next Monday. 

 

 

 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 10



OCTOBER 6, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

 
9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Mayor Haygood reported that the Jubilee Festival was a success, and the bows around the city were 

provided by Mrs. Dorothy Morrison and the Beautification Committee. 

 

Councilwoman Conaway announced that the Drug, Alcohol and Crime Forum is Saturday October 11
th

 

at 6:00 p.m. at Macedonia Baptist Church on Daphne Avenue. 

 

Councilman Lake said that he was present at the I-10 Bridge meeting Monday, and he would like to see 

provisions for pedestrians and bikes on the new bridge.  He agreed with Mrs. Comstock’s comments. 

 

Councilman Scott said that the pedestrian part of the bridge is estimated at between $25-40 million. He 

thinks the state is committed to having some way to have pedestrian traffic, but it might be the other 

bridge, it could be leaving the tunnel open, but it doesn’t necessarily have to be taxed $40 million to go 

over it.  There are other ways to get pedestrians and bicycles across.  The MPO is involved, and the 

MPO cannot expend funds for recreational biking, but if it is transportation, getting to and from work, 

that is very important to transportation. 

 

Councilman Davis encouraged citizens to fill out the comment sheets regarding the I-10 bridge. The 

deadline is November 7
th

.  The more responses the better chance there is to getting the bridge. He 

mentioned an article regarding real estate with Lee Lawson with the Baldwin County Economic 

Development Alliance.  The article was about making the area better.   

 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss the good name and 

character of an individual and a matter that could lead to litigation.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

 

The City Attorney, Jay Ross, certified that the above stated reason for going into Executive Session is 

according to the Open Meeting Act. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway    Aye    LeJeune   Aye 

Rudicell   Aye    Davis    Aye 

Lake   Aye    Fry    Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 11



OCTOBER 6, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e9
 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 

8:00 P.M. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                  Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________   _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,     Randy Fry,     

City Clerk      Council President 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 12



OCTOBER 13, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; 

Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present: Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; David McKelroy, Recreation 

Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Kevin Boucher, Adams & Reese, Attorneys. 

 

1.    CALL TO ORDER 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION 

Councilman Lake gave the invocation. 

 

3.    REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS / RECREATION FACILITIES 

Richard Johnson, Public Works Director, gave a synopsis of the revisions. 

 

Council discussed the proposal and asked that a skateboard park be added to Group E, and that a 

clause regarding the facilities being ADA compliant be added to the proposal. 

 

Consensus of council is to put the proposal on the agenda for the October 20
th

 meeting.  

 

4.    ANYTHING ELSE DEEMED NECESSARY 

Councilman Davis requested the donation of properties be on the October 20
th

 agenda for 

discussion. 

 

5.    ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted,     Certification of Presiding Officer 

 

 

_________________________________   ____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk    Randy Fry, Council President 

 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 13



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 14



BEAUTIFICTION  
QUARTERLY AWARD 

 
 

 
The following businesses were selected at the DBC meeting 
this morning. 

 

District 1     Terry Thompson Cheverolet - Tommie Conaway 

                       1402 Highway 98 

                        626-0631 

 

District 2      Certpro Painting - Pat Rudicell 

                        2100 Main Street & Randall Dr. 

                         288-3808 

 

The presentation will be on Monday, October 20, at 6:30 
p.m.  
At City Council Meeting at City Hall. 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 15



CITY OF DAPHNE 

AMERICA RECYCLES DAY 

NOVEMBER 15, 2014 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne recognizes the importance of protecting and preserving our natural 

resources, and work to make the world a better place by adopting conscientious living habits that will 

improve our daily lives and bring about a cleaner, safer and healthier environment; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has undertaken many positive and successful waste reduction programs 

that have helped make Daphne a recycling leader, however, we can further reduce waste and recycle 

even more; and 

WHEREAS, although there has been a significant increase in the amount of recycling in Daphne today, 

we must continue to focus on other initiatives such as waste reduction, composting, the reuse of 

products and materials, and purchasing recycled products and packaging; an 

WHEREAS, by encouraging businesses, State agencies, nonprofit organizations, schools and individuals 

to help celebrate “America Recycles Day”, we can further promote recycling as an environmentally 

efficient and economically smart way of life; and 

WHEREAS, local community leaders can help encourage recycling by informing citizens about the 

importance of buying recycled products; they can also help foster greater awareness of the need to 

expand collection programs for recyclable goods and materials by promoting the benefits of recycling 

investments for businesses; and 

WHEREAS, it is important that all Daphne residents become involved in recycling activities and learn 

more about the many recycled products and packaging available to them as consumers; it is also fitting 

for Daphne to celebrate American Recycles Day to help ensure a safe and healthy environment and an 

improved quality of life for present and future generations; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor  and City Council of the City of Daphne, Baldwin County, Alabama, do 

hereby recognize Saturday, November 15, 2014  as America Recycles Day in the Daphne, Alabama. 

 

         _________________________ 

         Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

       ATTEST: 

 

         __________________________ 

         Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 16



 

 

  

 

 

City of Daphne 
will be celebrating  

 America’s Recycle Day 
& Amnesty Day 

November 15, 2014 
Join us for a day of Free Family Fun, Games and Great Prizes. 

MEET US ON THE FRONT LAWN AT CITY HALL 

10:00 A.M. -2:00 P.M.  

For More Information: www.daphneal.com or 251-621-3182 

         

 

       

     Sponsors: 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 17

http://www.daphneal.com/
http://www.daphneutilities.com/index.php


CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
OCTOBER 13, 2014 

4:00 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:00 p.m.  Present were Chairperson Mrs. Conaway, Councilman Joseph 
Davis, Councilman Ron Scott , Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson, Revenue Officer Jamie Smith, Deputy 
Director Christine Ciancetta, Human Resource Director Vickie Hinman, and Accounting Technician Sue Moody. 
 
 Councilman John Lake arrived at  4:17p.m. 
 
Also in attendance were Councilman Pat Rudicell, Councilman Robin LeJeune, Council President Randy Fry, 
Public Works Director Richard Johnson, Recreation Director David McKelroy, Environmental Programs Manager 
Ashley Campbell, Library Director Tonja Young, Fire Chief James White, and Captain Scott Taylor. 
 
 

I.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 

A.  Sewer Hookup – Residence on Wilson Avenue 
Mrs. Ashley Campbell discussed a complaint received from the neighbors of a residence on Wilson Avenue 
concerning sewer issues.  Mrs. Campbell discussed that the residence was not hooked up to the City Sewer 
system and notification has now been sent that they have to hook up within 60 days.  Mr. Johnson noted that 
there were previously additional family members living in the home and recent heavy rains that were a factor in 
this sewage problem but both of those situations have changed.  Mrs. Campbell noted the home owner is on a 
fixed income and has stated they cannot afford the hookup fee.  Mrs. Campbell noted she and others at the City 
are working to help the owner find funding options to assist with the hookup fee.  Mrs. Campbell has been in 
touch with the Daphne Utility Board to discuss the issue.  Discussion continued on some other options to check 
on for funding. 
 
 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

       A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
       
Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
Positions      Status 
Finance Director     Open 
Computer Services Technician               Open 
Accountant      Interviewing 
City Hall Office Asst.     Temp. employee 
HR position      Open 
Firefighter (2)      Interviewing 
 
Safety Committee meeting was on September 10, 2014.   
The Committee Reviewed reports of City employee injuries and property damages for previous month.  
Employee Safety Committee reviewed and revised Safety Handbook policies. 
  
HR projects/meetings: 

 Sexual Harassment training for Supervisors and Department Heads on Sept. 30 & Oct. 1 

 Auditing Personnel Files 

 Off-site ½ day EEOC training seminar 

 Scheduled flu shots for employees (includes City Council & Mayor)  
September 24 & 26 and October 8 & 10 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 18



Finance Minutes.doc  2  

Mr. Scott discussed the Finance Director position still being vacant.  Mr. Scott asked if salary was the 
problem then did they need to increase the starting salary $20,000.  Mr. Scott read a survey of salary 
information listing surrounding municipalities salaries for the Finance Director position: 

 Fairhope - $57,343 - $91,748 

 Robertsdale - $50,128 - $92,082 

 Baldwin County - $74,237 - $117,594 

 Foley - $69,592 - $97,429 

 Orange Beach – current Salary - $96,137 

 Daphne - $52,380 - $86,836 
Mr. Davis stated Daphne is the largest municipality in Baldwin County and the salary should be competitive and 

reflect that.  Survey information included in the survey (completed in 2011) was the current average salary of 

Finance Directors of surrounding municipalities: Baldwin County-$85,000, Daphne-$77,985, Fairhope-$84,270, 
Orange Beach-$81,473.  The Mayor stated he has to operate and advertise according to the ordinance.  
Discussion continued on reclassifying the pay grade for the Finance Director from a 36 to a 40.  Ron 
recommended advertising the position at a Grade 40 Step 16 ($80,521).  The Mayor asked what the salary was 
for a Grade 40 Step 25 and discussed advertising up to a step 25 and have any recommendation above a step 
12 require a Council approval.  Mrs. Ciancetta answered step 25 would be a salary of $93,663.   Mr. Scott 
amended his motion to reclassify the Finance Director position to a Grade 40 and allowing the Mayor to 
advertise the position pay up to Grade 40 Step 25.   

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to adopt an ordinance approving the 1) reclassification of the 
Finance Director position from a Grade 36 to a Grade 40, 2)allowing the Mayor to 
advertise the position up to a Step 25 pay - $93,663  with Council approval required for 
any recommendation above a step 12, and 3) approve an appropriation of  $44,243 
($38,311 wages + $5,932 benefits) .  Seconded by Mr. Davis.   
Motion carried. 

 

 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A.  Financial Reports 

 
1. Treasurer’s Report:  September, 2014 

 
    Mrs. Henson reviewed the Treasurer’s Report and noted:  

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $9,547,829                   

 Decrease from Last Year’s Unrestricted Funds – ($782,467)      

 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service – 4.3 months 
compared to the previous year – 4.9  months 

Included in the packet are graphs that show the current year’s activity is below the previous year’s activity. 
Mrs. Henson noted the # of months of unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating expenses and debt service 
is up from last month’s 3.7 due to debt transfers and payments and end of year purchases. Mr. Scott asked if 
the unrestricted amount reflected the transfer to the Lodging Tax Fund for the debt forgiveness of the 
Recreation loan $643,644.  Mrs. Henson stated that entry has been recorded. Mr. Davis asked about the 
previous year’s encumbrances.  Mrs. Henson noted that Council generally clears some of the older 
encumbrances and others that are no longer needed off this report – it is good to review the encumbrance list 
each year at budget time.  Mr. Scott read an e-mail from Pfil Hunt, Harbor Financial Services, LLC that the City 
received a rating of AA+ from Standards and Poors.   
      .   

The Treasurer’s Report as of September 30, 2014 Total Unrestricted Funds - $9,547,829             
and Total City Funds - $16,532,945  was presented to be filed for audit.  
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes: September, 2014 
 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Sales & Use Tax Reports and Graphs: $1,129,483 was collected for August 2014: 

 YTD Variance over Budget:+$80,401 /  6% 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 19



Finance Minutes.doc  3  

 Percent change from last year’s collections:  +664,828 /  5.6%  
 
Graphs were included in the packet. Discussion was made on the Sales Tax collections information. 
 
 
 
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections,  August, 2014 

 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax Collections Report and noted the collections for August 2014 were 
$93,733 which is up $41,305  from August’s 2013’s collections of $52,427.  

 YTD Variance over Budget:    $224,422  

 Percentage change from last year’s collections:  +25.3 % 
 
Mr. Scott noted that even with the increase in the Lodging tax of 4% to 6% the increase from August collections 
for 2013 was a 44% increase so there is definitely an increase in activity. 
 

 4.  Lodging Tax Fund : Statement of Rev over Exp, September 30,2014 (draft/Unreconciled) 

 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the reviewed the Lodging Tax Fund Statement and noted that previous months balances 
have been added to the report for reference and comparison information.  Mrs. Henson stated the unreserved 
balance for Bayfront property related expenditures is $1,911,746 and the reserve for recreation is $234,103. 

 
6. Report: New Business Licenses – August & September, 2014    

Mrs. Henson introduced the new Revenue Officer Jamie Smith.  Mrs. Smith stated she was very happy to be at 
the City of Daphne.  Mrs. Smith noted she had 13 years experience working in the Revenue Department at the 
City of Foley and she had also worked at the Baldwin County Sherriff’s department.  Mrs. Smith included the 
August Business License Report since it was not included in last month’s Finance packet information then 
reviewed the totals for the September report.        
Total business license issued YTD is 4,153  - up 180 from last year 
 

 144 - Total Business License issued in September  -  up 84 from September 2013 (60 licenses 

issued).   
 80  - Renewals – out of the144  

 47  - New businesses with 13 of those having a physical location in Daphne and 

 17  - Prior year licenses.  A map was included showing each of the 10 new businesses locations.  
 
Mrs. Smith stated that out of the increase of 84 license issued in September 60 of those were from state 
collections for insurance companies.  Discussion continued on the new businesses with a physical location in 
Daphne.  Mrs. Smith noted that 4 of the new businesses with physical locations in Daphne were ownership 
changes.  Mrs. Smith provided maps for the committee members so they could see the physical location of the 
new businesses. Mr. Davis noted that there were 14 new businesses that opened in August that were based out 
of Mobile and 1 in September and noted this is another reason the new I-10 Bridge is needed.   Mrs. Smith 
noted that she and Mrs. Anita Allen, Revenue Technician would be traveling to Tuscaloosa, AL Tuesday for 
Revenue Officer (AMRO) Certification training and that after this training session Mrs. Allen will receive her final 
certification and she would be re-certified.  The Finance Committee commented they were glad to have her on 
board. 
 

6.  Bills Paid Reports –  September, 2014 
The Bills Paid Report was presented with the packet.  Mrs. Henson noted that the format was different because 
Mrs. Donna Page, Accountant did not have access to the old report writer on her new computer setup.  Mrs. 
Henson stated that all that is missing from the old format was the department column and that the department 
was generally referenced in the description column.  Mrs. Henson noted that Mrs. Sue Moody, A/P Technician 
does an excellent job entering detailed descriptions for future reference information.  Mrs. Henson noted that if 
there were any questions she could not directly answer she would be glad to research the information and get 
an answer. 
 

A. Appropriation Request: (Ordinance) 
 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 20



Finance Minutes.doc  4  

1. Mazie’s Gulch Additional Appropriation – $12,606 – Tabled from August 18
th

 Council 
Meeting  (Sponsor Match) - Emergency Watershed Protection (EWP) program project for repair: private property 

watershed issues: (NRCS-$69,630.12/  City-$23,817.07 = Total Project cost - $93,447.19)  
 
Mr. Richard Johnson reviewed the Mazie’s Gulch project and noted the final construction cost was almost 
double the original estimate.  Mr. Johnson reviewed the complications of the project.  Mr. Johnson noted that 
part of the monies were appropriated based upon the original estimate and that $12,606 additional funds were 
needed.  Mr. Johnson noted the additional eligible cost have been submitted to NRCS for reimbursement. 

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to adopt an ordinance appropriating $12,606  out of the General 
Fund for the completion of the Mazie’s Gulch project.  Seconded by Mr. Lake.  Motion 
carried. 
 

2. Lake Forest Sidewalk  - $125,996  
 
Mr. Johnson noted these are preliminary numbers for the pending sidewalk project and was presented for 
informational purposes only at the recent Public Works Committee meeting. 
 

3. FY2015 Capital & Personnel Budget Request  
A spreadsheet listing the 23 new personnel request, 2 upgrades, and 4 reclassifications was presented in the 
packet.  A spreadsheet listing Capital request was also included in the packet. 
 
The Mayor gave his top 6 personnel request: 

 General Government Director 

 Assistant Human Resource Director 

 IT Technician 

 Revenue Technician 

 Marketing Director – Part-Time 

 Code Enforcement Officer 
The Mayor also asked if Council would reinstate the Deputy Director position.  The Mayor stated he thought he 
had some qualified potential candidates for this position. 
 
Mr. Scott discussed that in the past full Council has reviewed and voted on the Personnel and Capital request in 
the past and he wanted to present the request to the full Council.  Mr. Lake agreed.  Mr. Davis made a motion to 
approve the Mayor’s recommended 6 positions.  The motion died for a lack of a second. 
 
Mrs. Conaway read a letter from the Library Board referencing the excellent job that Mrs. Louis Youngblood had 
done for the City and as the Young Adult Librarian.  Mrs. Youngblood’s position is listed as a proposed 
reclassification from a Library Technician (part-time to a Young Adult Librarian (full-time) along with other 
reclassification request including the Environmental Program Manager, Senior Accountant, and GIS Manager 
Planner. 

 
4. FY2015 Operating Budget Convention & Visitors Bureau - $37,000  

 
Mr. Rudicell handed out the Convention and Tourism operating budget  ($37,000) and discussed appropriating 
monies.  Mr. Rudicell’s handout also referenced adding a Part-Time Events Assistant (13,047) or temporary 
services budget ($11,000) and overtime ($2,000).  Mr. Davis wanted to note that this request was for the 
Convention and Visitor’s Bureau associated cost and did not cover all the City-wide marketing 
needs/expenditures.  Mr. Fry discussed amending the City’s Job Classification Plan to include the Civic Center 
and Convention and Visitor’s Bureau Director job description.  Discussion continued to prepare these 
ordinances for full Council to vote on. 

 
5. Donated Property Appraisal: Park Drive/Pine Hill Drive - $7,500  

 
Mrs. Ashley Campbell, EPM discussed the donation of property located at Park Drive & Pine Hill Drive.  Mrs. 
Campbell discussed that part of this property is used as a water retention area so it would be good for the City 
to own this property in order to maintain storm water management of this area.  Mr. Johnson noted that the 
property abuts Park City Park and that the entrance to Park City Park runs through a portion of this property.  

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 21



Finance Minutes.doc  5  

Discussion continued on the property and the estimated survey, appraisal and associated closing costs.  The 
Mayor recommended that $7,500 be appropriated to cover these costs. 

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to adopt an ordinance appropriating $7,500 out of the General 
Fund for the survey, appraisal, and associated closing cost of donated property 
located at Park Drive & Pine Hill Drive. Seconded by Mr. Davis.  Motion carried. 
         

B. 2015 Severe Weather Sales Tax Holiday:  February 20-22, 2015: (Resolution) 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the 2015 Severe Weather Sales Tax Holiday Resolution and noted this resolution has 
been adopted in previous years.  Mrs. Henson noted the State of Alabama has to be notified of the City of 
Daphne’s participation in the Sales Tax Holiday by January 20, 2015.   
 

Motion by Mr. Scott  to recommend to Council to approve the  Resolution for the City of 
Daphne to participate in the Severe Weather Sales Tax Holiday on February 20-22, 2015. 

Seconded by Mr. Davis.  Motion carried. 
 
          D.  Ordinance Authorizing the Mayor to Enter into Certain Contracts 
 
Mr. Scott discussed the recent copier contract for replacement of copiers city-wide that the Mayor 
signed and stated Council would like to be aware when contracts of this nature are being signed.  An 
ordinance was forwarded from the Ordinance Committee addressing the delegation of which contracts 
the Mayor is authorized to sign.  Discussion continued on the $15,000 threshold listed in the 
ordinance and that there are several Purchase Orders that will exceed this threshold.  Mrs. Henson 
stated that verbiage could be added to each new year’s Ordinance appropriating funds for Capital that 
would authorize the Mayor to sign any contracts associated with the purchase of the equipment… – 
as allowed by State of Alabama bid law (ex. purchasing through cooperative agencies).  Discussion 
continued that the City attorney will need to update the ordinance in order to better facilitate day-to-
day operations and allow purchases of approved capital equipment.   
 
          E.   Ordinance Amending Ordinance 2002-34 / Garbage Collection   
 
 Discussion was made concerning increasing the garbage collection fee from $13.90 to $15.40.  Mr. 
Davis recommended rounding the fee up to $16.00.    Mr. Lake stated he was against the increase 
and noted that some surrounding municipalities do not charge for garbage pickup.  Mr. Lake stated he 
felt this fee creates an economic hardship for some citizens.  Mr. Johnson noted that eligible Senior 
citizens on a fixed income can apply to be exempt from paying the garbage collection fee so this 
increase would not affect them. 
 

Motion by Mr. Davis to recommend to Council to approve the Ordinance amending 
Ordinance 2002-34 to increase the Garbage collection fee from  $13.90 - $16.00 effective 

January 1, 2015.  Seconded by Mr. Scott. Mr. Lake – NAY.   Motion carried. 
..   
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
 
VI. ADJOURN   The meeting adjourned at 6:00 p.m.  

 
 
 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 22



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 23



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 24



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 25



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 26



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 27



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 28



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 29



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 30



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 31



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 32



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 33



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 34



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 35



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 36



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 37



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 38



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 39



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 40



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 41



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 42



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 43



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 44



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 45



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 46



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 47



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 48



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 49



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 50



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 51



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 52



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 53



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 54



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 

Monday, October 6, 2014 

5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall- Executive Conference Room 

 

Committee Minutes 

Present: Councilman Joe Davis; Councilman Randy Fry; Councilman Pat Rudicell; Margaret 

Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk (Recording Secretary); 

Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Mayor Dane Haygood; Al Guarisco, 

Village Point Foundation; Selena Vaughn, Village Point Foundation 

Absent: Rick Whitehead; Frank Barnett, Richard Johnson, Richard Merchant 

The meeting brought to order at 5:24 pm by Chairman Joe Davis. 

1. Public participation 

 

No one spoke. 

 

2. Approval of minutes: September 2, 2014 

 

Motion by Mr. Rudicell to adopt the September 2, 2014 minutes as written.  Seconded by 

Mr. Fry.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

3. Resolution for Surplus Property 

 

Chairman Davis will inquire into the possibility of utilizing one of the listed vehicles for the 

shooting range. 

 

Motion by Mr. Rudicell to recommend the Resolution for Surplus Property for adoption by 

the Council.  Seconded by Mr. Fry.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

 

4. Civic Center & Bayfront report (September): Margaret Thigpen  

 

Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed her September report.  September 2014 revenue 

totaled $14,746.00, an increase from September 2013 levels.  Year to Date revenues stood at 

$198,701.00, above figures listed for FY2013.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits 

for September stood at $11,805.50, and that the Civic Center has seen nine events during 

September, for a total of 12 days used, not including setup days. 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 55



Ms. Thigpen then turned to Bayfront Pavilion, reporting revenues for September totaling 

$2,300.00, below September 2013 levels, and year-to-date revenues totaling $78,729.00, an 

increase from 2013 numbers.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits for September 

stood at $8,661.00, and that Bayfront Pavilion has seen three events during September, for a 

total of three days used, not including setup days.  These figures include two cancelations. 

 

Ms. Thigpen listed a number of recently passed and upcoming events scheduled at the Civic 

Center which are listed on her report herein.   

 

In addition, she updated the Committee on the following: 

 Ms. Thigpen provided a list of public events and a chart depicting 2015 business that is 

already secured. 

 Also provided graphs requested by Mayor Haygood depicting revenue levels for the Civic 

Center and Bayfront Pavilion. 

 She referenced documentation contained with the packet herein depicting ticket sale 

information for Taste of the Eastern Shore. 

 Phase two of the Civic Center roof project is complete.  So far there have been no leaks. 

 As requested by the Committee, Ms. Thigpen provided information regarding the 

difference in labor costs for maintaining the current carpets and proposed vinyl flooring 

for Bayfront Pavilion. 

 Provided researched Hurricane/natural disaster policies for Committee to review, with 

the current policy given first.   

 Looking to make the cleaning fee mandatory for Bayfront Pavilion. 

 

5. Building inspection monthly reports (September):  Ashley Campbell 

 

Ms. Ashley Campbell reviewed the building report for the month of September.  She reported 

nine new residential construction projects initiated, and no new commercial development.  The 

department issued 102 permits during September, with a total job valuation of $2,644,744.39 

with permit fees totaling $21,061.55.   

 

6. Bayfront property 

 

Chairman Davis addressed the ADA compliance issues reported at May Day Park.  Richard 

Johnson and the public works staff are in the process of handling these complaints. 

 

Mayor Haygood arrived at 5:46 pm. 

 

Mayor Haygood stated that he was in touch with the complaining party regarding these issues. 

 

7. Information kiosk at Bayfront Park 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 56



Ms. Selena Vaughn is collaborating with Ms. Campbell and Daphne Public Works to determine 

the appearance of signage and other elements, and will take over the selection process for the 

information kiosk. 

 

8. Memorial policy 

 

The Committee briefly discussed putting together some requirements and ideas for such a 

policy.  Chairman Davis volunteered to bring example policies to the next meeting. 

 

9. Building maintenance approval process 

 

The Committee discussed the best way to handle minor building maintenance items such as 

lights or blinds.  Discussion included the possibility of proposing a $5,000.00 appropriation to 

City Hall building maintenance, with any purchase over $500.00 requiring approval by the 

Buildings and Property Committee.  No formal action taken. 

 

10. Property Donations & Acquisitions 

 

Mayor Haygood updated the Committee on the following property donations and acquisitions: 

 

- Park Drive-Pinehill Parcels: 

 

The Mayor reported that these parcels would be donated to the City, but the City would need to 

pay appraisal costs. 

 

 

Motion by Mr. Rudicell to recommend the Finance Committee and the City Council to 

appropriate  funding to cover acquisition costs associated with the donated properties at 

Park Drive-Pinehill subject to inspection by the Environmental Programs Manager.  

Seconded by Mr. Fry.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Mayor Haygood additionally discussed other potential property acquisitions: one possible 

donation and two prospective purchase opportunities, which are still under negotiation. 

 

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 6:25, motion by 

Mr. Rudicell and seconded by Mr. Fry. 

 

 

 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 57



City of Daphne 
Park City Park
PIN #28520  
3.2 Acres

LOT #1
PIN #48403  
2.92 Acres

 LOT # 3
 PIN # 55199 
 .85 Acres

LOT #2
PIN # 234784
1.05 Acres

PARK DR

PINE HILL RD

MOORE LN

CARL DAVIS RD

SMILEYS LN

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet /

Park Drive Parcels

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 58



LOT 1

LOT 1
PIN 45862
1.14 ACRES

LOT 2
PIN 72441
.49 ACRES

MAIN ST

U S HWY 98

OL
D 

SP
AN

ISH
 TR

SANTA ROSA AV

DAUPHINE CIR

CROSSOVER

U S HWY 98

0 50 100 150 20025
Feet /

SANTA ROSA-HWY 98 LAND DONATIONS

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 59



17

15

12
2 0

2.02
1

AARON, HENRY ETUX BILLYE S2.92
AARON, HENRY & BILLYE S1.05
AARON, HENRY & BILLYE S0.85

T9

D10

DC1

DA1

T3

T6

DB
5

D2

T2

TB1

D9

T1

D6

TC2

D12

TE1

T7

T4

DA
9

J5

DA
7

DA6

T5

TG2

DB
3

DAC2

DA
CA

1

TC
1

D4

TG4

TCA1

DA3

TA1

DAC1DAB1

TD1

D8

TGA1

DA2

TC
A3

DB1

TCB1

TC
oE

2

TAA1TA2

D7

DAD1

D11

DB
4

DA5

DAA2

DD3

TC
oW

2

T8

TEA1

TG1

I-10

U S HWY 90

BUZBEE RD

ST
AT

E H
WY

 18
1

SPANISH FORT BLVD

CO
UN

TY
 RD

 13

PINE RUN

RIDGEWOOD DR

JIMMY FAULKNER DR

PARK DR

WOODROW LN

RI
GS

BY
 R

D

ONE HORSE RD

U S HWY 31

BL
AK

EL
EY

 W
AY

RI
TA

 AV

CHAMPIONS WAY

WA
YS

ID
E D

R

TIMBERCREEK BLVD

MALBIS LN

PAPAS ST

OLD MOBILE RD

ST
AG

EC
OA

CH
 R

D

BAY VIEW DR

SIBLEY CREEK RD

ROLLING HILL DR

D'OLIVE RDG

MARCHAND AV

SP
AN

IS
H 

LN

HOPE DR

JA
Y D

R

MI
LL

 LN

MARCELLA AV
FR

ED
ER

IC
K 

BL
VD

ALDER AV

DONNA CIR

EASTERN SHORE BLVDWI
LS

ON
 D

R

PO
LL

AR
D 

RD

TARA BLVD S

DR
IFT

WO
OD

 LN

WA
LL

IN
G 

RD

O'HARA DR

WAKEFIELD DR

GR
EE

N 
CT

PINE CT

RHETT DR

ASPEN CIR

ESTIA ST

NORTH CT

JOSEPH DR

PLANTATION DR

DEWITT CIR

SA
IN

T B
AS

IL 
ST

RILEYWOOD DR

LAKE FRONT DR

LAUREL CTWAITES LN

GREENLEAF DR

MIDDLECREEK CIR

ANN ST

TAMPARY ST

DO
UG

LA
S R

D

ROSEWOOD LN

LONGUE VUE BLVD

WIND CLAN TR

ASH CTEM
BE

R 
LN

LANDSDOWN DR

RA
Y L

N

RE
NA

IS
SA

NC
E P

KW
Y

CEMETARY RD

BUENA VISTA DR

BR
EN

TW
OO

D 
DR

SARA AV N

PLAZA DE TOROS DR

HONEYSUCKLE LN

HAVENWOOD CIR

LA
W

SO
N 

RD
 EX

T

BROADMOOR DR

BLAKELEY RIDGE DR

BUZBEE LN

DONETTE LOOP

TO
LB

ER
T L

N

ROCKWELL SCHOOL DR

SH
IVE

R 
RD

I-10

0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.80.1
Miles /

Timber Creek Parcels

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 60



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 61



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 62



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 63



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 64



Code Enforcement / Ordinance Committee 
    Wednesday, October 8, 2014 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

Executive Conference Room 

5:30 p.m. 

                                                                               

                                                                                   

Councilman Ron Scott, Chairman                                                       Councilman Pat Rudicell                                                           

Councilman Robin LeJeune                                                                Councilman Randy Fry 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL: 

 There being a quorum present Councilman Scott called the meeting to order at 5:15 p.m. 

 

 MEMBERS PRESENT:  Ron Scott; Randy Fry; Robin LeJeune; Pat Rudicell.   

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk, recording secretary; Councilman Joe Davis. 

 

II.  APPROVE MINUTES / September 10, 2014 

There were no corrections to the September 10, 2014 minutes and stand approved as written. 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
No one spoke. 

 

IV.      ORDINANCE REVIEW  

a.)  Authorizing the Mayor to Enter Into Certain Contracts 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to send the ordinance Authorizing the Mayor to Enter Into 

Certain Contracts with a threshold of $15,000 to the Finance Committee for review and to 

place the ordinance on the agenda for the October 20, 2014 council meeting agenda for a 

1at Read.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 
 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

b.)    Amending Ordinance 2002-34 / Increase Garbage Fees 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to send the ordinance increasing garbage fees to $15.40 

with an effective date of January 1, 2015 to the Finance Committee for review and to place 

the ordinance on the October 20, 2014 council meeting agenda for a 1
st
 read.  Seconded by  

Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 65



OCTOBER 8, 2014       CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE               Page 2 
 

V.     OTHER BUSINESS 
No other business to discuss. 

 

 

VIII.   NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting will be November 12, 2014 

 

IX.   ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 6:00 p.m.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

 

 

Rebecca A. Hayes,   

Recording Secretary 
  

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 66



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 67



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 68



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 69



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 70



 
 

CITY OF DAPHNE  

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT AGENDA 

OCTOBER 2, 2014 - 6:00 P.M.  

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 6:00 p.m. 

 

2. CALL OF ROLL – Present W. Robison, L. Cooke, B. Mayhand, F. Lamb, P. 
Durant, W. Scully, T. Warner 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Approved  

  

 August 7, 2014   

  

4. OLD BUSINESS 

 

5. NEW BUSINESS – Special Exception & Variance Approved as amended 

 

Appeal #2014-09 Verizon Wireless - Amended 

 
A request for a Special Exception and a Variance to the 

Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance has been filed 

with the City of Daphne Board of Zoning Adjustment. The 

Special Exception, if granted, would allow the construction 

of a Verizon Wireless telecommunications tower. The 

Variance to Article 32-3(c) of the LUDO, if approved, would 

allow the proposed wireless tower to be located 150-ft and 

10 inches from the R-1 zoned property located to the north 

in lieu of the required 170-ft. The property is located at 

26435 Public Works Road on a 30’ x 35’ land lease space 

along Well Road, which is zoned B-2 General Business.  

 

Election of Officers – W. Robison, Chairman, L. Cooke, V. Chairman 

 
6. ADJOURNMENT – 6:34 p.m. 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 71



 

1 | P a g e  
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

PLANS FOR NEW RECREATION FACILITIES 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 

PLANS FOR NEW RECREATION FACILITIES 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposal Due Date/Time 

Friday, January 23, 2015 

4:00 P.M. (CST) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

Parks and Recreation Department 

 

 

 

 

  

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 72



 

2 | P a g e  
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

PLANS FOR NEW RECREATION FACILITIES 

SECTION 1. - GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

This document is to solicit request for proposals (RFP) to prepare plans for new Recreation 

Facilities for the City of Daphne, Alabama. The City of Daphne recently completed a 

preliminary needs assessment and has developed a prioritized listing of needed facilities. This 

listing is included in this document and should serve to guide the objectives of this RFP.  

 

The City of Daphne has two principal sports recreation facilities: Lott Park on Main Street and 

Trione Sports Complex on Whispering Pines Road. This city also owns 116 acres off of Park 

Drive that has been identified as a potential sports recreation park. The entrance to the property 

has been developed, however the bulk of the remaining property remains undeveloped. The 

proposals submitted may involve improvements, redevelopment, new constructions and/or 

repurposing of all three properties. Applicants are further encouraged to be creative in their 

proposals to deliver the maximum amount of quality facilities for the funds available. This may 

include feasible proposals to acquire available new property for new recreation facilities. 

 

Contract Administration 

 

All correspondence regarding this Request for Proposal (RFP) and the proposed work must be 

addressed to: 

 

City of Daphne, Parks and Recreation Department 

Attention: David McKelroy, Director 

P.O. Box 400 

Daphne, AL 36526 

 

All firms whom receive or download this RFP are requested to register their name and email 

address by sending an email to: dmckelroy@daphneal.com. Any revisions or corrections to this 

RFP, after it has been posted, will be communicated to those registered RFP holders. Failure to 

register your contact information is at your own risk. A proposal will not be considered if it fails 

to include all requested information as detailed in this original RFP and any subsequent 

modifications. 

 

RFP Schedule 

 

10/21/2014  Advertisement Begins 

11/21/2014  Mandatory Letter of Intent to Submit Proposal due to City by 4 p.m. 

12/01/2014 Mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting: 10 a.m. – City Hall 

12/23/2014  Deadline for written questions to the Department from proposers 

01/09/2015  Deadline for Department responses to proposers questions 

01/23/2015 RFP Submittal due to City by 4 p.m. 

02/09/2015  Selected Proposers present to City Council at Work Session 

03/02/2015  Final decision and announcement by Council Resolution  

 

 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 73

mailto:dmckelroy@daphneal.com


 

3 | P a g e  
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

PLANS FOR NEW RECREATION FACILITIES 

Mandatory Letter of Intent & Pre-Proposal Meeting  

 

All firms who intend to submit proposals for the design of new recreational facilities shall be 

require to: 

 

1. Submit a Letter of Intent by 4 p.m. – 11/14/2014 – Letter shall contain: 

a. Simple statement of qualification and intent to submit proposal 

b. Contact information for the firm 

c. Name, phone number(s) and email of individual who will be the primary point of 

contact (POC) for the City 

2. Firm must attend a Mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting: 12/01/2014, 10 a.m. – Daphne 

City Hall – This meeting: 

a. Will allow City Staff to meet your Firm 

b. Allow proposers to ask questions and seek clarification concerning request 

c. Allow for the issuance of addendums and revisions to this request 

 

These two activities are mandatory. Proposals from firms who do not submit Letter of Intent and 

attend Pre-Proposal Meeting will not be accepted. 

 

Any requests for additional information that may be needed for the preparation of the proposal 

should be directed to David McKelroy. All questions must be received before 4:00 pm, 

December 23, 2014. No questions after that time will receive a response. 

 

Submittal of Proposal 

 

Please provide twelve (12) bound paper copies and one electronic (pdf) copy of the proposal for 

the evaluation process. 

 

Submittals shall be addressed to: David McKelroy at: 

 

Mail: P.O. Box 400 Courier:  1705 Main Street  

 Daphne, AL 36526  Daphne, AL 36526 

 

Submittals will be accepted until 4pm on January 23, 2015 

 

 

SECTION 2. COMMUNITY BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 

Located on the 1-10 corridor connecting Texas to Florida, the City of Daphne (population 

23,000+) is the largest of three Eastern Shore cities. The Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce, 

which sits at the 1-10 exit to Daphne, estimates over the last three years, an average of 13,000 

visitors to our Welcome Center each year. In 2012, upon reaching 50,000 population and being 

listed as a small urbanized area in US Census, the Eastern Shore Metropolitan Planning 

Organization was formed encompassing the cities of Spanish Fort, Daphne and Fairhope, a 

portion of Loxley and unincorporated areas near the municipalities. The US Census Bureau also 

listed the Daphne, Fairhope, Foley area as the second fastest growing population in the state and 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 74



 

4 | P a g e  
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

PLANS FOR NEW RECREATION FACILITIES 

this year the area is ranked as the ninth fastest growing Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) in 

the country. 

 

Daphne is located in west central Baldwin County in the southwestern portion of the State. 

Encompassing 13.5 square miles, Daphne is a waterfront community, which lies on the eastern 

shore of Mobile Bay. The once Indian "Village" and later French Settlement in the 1700's 

became a resort area and later, a bedroom community of Mobile. Daphne often referred to as 

"The Jubilee City" has had a rich and colorful past and has tried hard to maintain the small town 

atmosphere, a trait that attracted many of its more recent residents. In 1868, the Baldwin County 

Commission selected Daphne as the County seat, which it remained until 1901. Daphne 

remained a small community until it annexed Lake Forest, Park City and Jackson Oaks in the 

late 1980's and instantly became the largest city in Baldwin County.  

 

Over the past decade 2000-2010, Daphne's population continues to increase at a rapid pace. New 

businesses and developments continue to emerge along the commercial zones of US Highways 

90 & 98 and State Route 181. As the economy grows along with Daphne's growth in population, 

there are increased demands for urban type services. Daphne continues to support and encourage 

parks and recreation facilities. The need for new facilities has been identified by citizens, elected 

officials and all those who are involved in team sports. 

 

Daphne has done quite a remarkable job over the past decade in managing the tremendous 

growth and making community services and facilities available. Resources to provide these 

services come primarily from taxable revenues. These facilities and services, as listed above, 

increase the Quality of Life for Daphne's residents as well as the surrounding area. 

 

SECTION 3. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

The submitted proposal must include conceptual plans, architectural renderings, material 

samples, construction cost estimates, consultant fee estimates, project timeline and all other 

documents and data required for a full comprehension of the proposer’s recreation facility plan 

for the City. 

 

Prioritized Listing of Proposed Recreation Facilities 

 

Below is a prioritized listing of needed facilities that should be included in the proposal: 

 

Group A Qty 5 300’ Softball/Baseball Fields (Lighted)See Field Notes, 3 

Qty 1 Multi-Use Football/Soccer/Lacrosse Field (Lighted) 1 
Qty 1 Playground for Trione Park 
Qty 6 Tennis Courts (Lighted)See Court Notes, 3 

Qty 1 Playground for any new park(s) for which team sport fields are  
 proposed 

Group B Qty 5  Youth Baseball FieldsSee Field Notes, 2, 3 

Group C Qty 1 Multi-Use Football/Soccer/Lacrosse Field (Lighted) 1 

Group D Qty 4  Tennis Courts (Lighted)See Court Notes, 3 

Group E Qty 1 Splash Pad & Outdoor Gathering Area 
Qty 1   Skateboard Park (20,000 sf minimum) 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 75



 

5 | P a g e  
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

PLANS FOR NEW RECREATION FACILITIES 

Group F Qty 1 Recreation Facility Building4 

- Administrative Offices (2,000 SF) 
- Indoor Basketball Court (stage/multipurpose capabilities) 
- 2 Multi-function Classroom/ Instructional Area  (750 SF each) 
- Indoor Walking Track 
- Fitness Area (Cardio + Weightlifting) 
- Showers 
- Large Multi-function Classroom/ Instructional Area (2,000 SF) 

  

Group G Qty 1 Seniors Center Building4 

-          Administrative Offices (1,000 SF) 
-          Commercial Kitchen & Dining Area Meeting Space (Dining for 75) 
-          Large Multi-function Classroom/ Instructional Area  (2,000 SF) 
-          2 Small Multi-function Classroom/ Instructional Area  (750 SF each) 
-          Seniors Fitness Area (Cardio) 

  

Group H Qty 1 Community Pool 

Group I Qty 2  Bocce Courts (shaded) 

Group Z Other Amenities not specified but could be beneficial to community: 
-          Outdoor Beach Volleyball Court 
-          Outdoor Basketball Court 
-          Any others no specified 

  

NOTES: General: 
1. Include necessary restroom/concession facilities as appropriate 
2. Include necessary maintenance/storage facilities as appropriate 
3. Include necessary parking facilities as appropriate 
4. Include walking paths for connectivity between elements. 
5. Landscaping and aesthetics should be considered as part of design. 
6. Shade and Shelter should be provided for in design. 

Field: 
1. Each complex is to have a concession, restroom, storage building 

with a scorekeeping space with a separate office and restroom on 
the second floor. 

2. All fields are skinned infields, no grass, grassed outfield 
3. Covered dugouts with benches, wrapped with chain link fence 
4. 30’ tall backstop with distance from home plate of 30’ 
5. MUSCO Lighting with Control-Link System – 50 infield/30 outfield 

maintained foot candle.(Through City purchasing agreement) 
6. Scoreboards – wireless with timers 
7. 50 seat capacity bleachers (5 row – 15’) – two per field 
8. Concrete sidewalks and spectator seating areas 
9. 6’ outfield fence to terminate at dugouts, dugouts to be 8’ chain link 
10. Storage for field maintenance item (field liner, chalk machine, chalk, 

rakes, etc) 
11. Batting cages with covered concrete surface – 6 minimum; 10 

preferred – ½ with Group A and ½ with Group B 
12. Maintenance building with office and bathroom 
13. Asphalt surface parking area with concrete curbs 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 76



 

6 | P a g e  
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

PLANS FOR NEW RECREATION FACILITIES 

  Court: 
1. On Court Benches and Shade 
2. Wind Screen 
3. Bleachers providing 20 seat capacity at each court 
4. Concrete sidewalks and pads for seating area 
5. Options for court surfaces: Base-level, Mid-level & High-end 

 
Footnotes: 
 1If possible, include adjacent baseball/softball infields to extend muti-use 
 capabilities to also provide to softball/baseball uses (two 
 baseball/softball for each multi-use field) 

2 To replace existing Baseball fields  at Lott Park 
3Options (See Section e, f & j – Budget): 
1. Base-level - example: Galvanized chain link fencing with backstop 
2. Mid-Level - example: Powder coated chain link fencing with 

backstop 
3. High-end - example: Both options of chain link fencing with brick 

and net backstop 
4This proposal may be made with three levels of materials/finishes 

 

Groupings: 

 

The Groupings A, B, C… are prioritized with A being the most urgent need and Z being the 

least. The proposal should accommodate the Groupings in terms of priority, timeline and budget. 

However, the proposer should feel empowered to “mix and match” elements from different 

groups if it yields economy of scales, is cost effective or advances the project development 

timeline. Regardless, the resulting final overall plan must recognize all groupings and their 

respective time of development and cost.  

 

Proposed Recreation Facilities: 

 

Proposals for Facilities (Group A-Z) listed above should be wholly inclusive of all work required 

to deliver them “turnkey” to the City. The work and associated cost should include, but is not 

limited to:  

1. Minimum Specifications listed above 

2. Surveying, Delineation, Design and Engineering that is site specific 

3. All permits: Federal, State and Local – including building permits 

4. All associated Civil Site Work: Grading, Drainage, Base & Paving 

5. All utility services required 

6. Compliance with City of Daphne Land Use Requirements 

7. Compliance with all applicable State and Federal Regulations including full ADA 

Compliance 

 

See Section 5. Project Budget for items that should be included as “add-alternatives” within the 

proposal. 

 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 77



 

7 | P a g e  
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

PLANS FOR NEW RECREATION FACILITIES 

Locations of Proposed Recreation Facilities  

 

The City would prefer to keep all baseball/softball diamonds on the same property and keep 

fields in relative close proximity of each other. As stated in Section I, the proposers have 

available to them the three recreation properties currently owned by the City: Lott Park, Trione 

Sports Complex, and the Park City Sports Complex. The proposals should use these three 

properties to their maximum potential and deliver to the City the best scenarios of facilities fitted 

to their respective property. There is no predisposition by the City as to where each facility 

should be located; the City is looking toward the proposer to make a recommendation as to the 

best and highest use of the City’s Recreation Assets.  See Section 6 - Creativity and Uniqueness 

of Plan – the City is looking for the proposer to present the best plan to deliver the maximum 

facilities for the best value. The proposer may recommend the acquisition of new property to 

achieve the development goal. However, the property must be available and the cost of 

acquisition must be included in the construction estimate. 

 

Current City Recreational Facilities Inventory: 

 

Lott Park Qty 4     Youth Baseball Fields (1 Tee Ball, 3 Youth Fields)  
Qty 2     Tennis Courts (Lighted) (not regulation spacing) 
Qty 1     Playground  
Qty 2     Bocce Courts (1 regulation, 1 non-regulation, inadequate shade & 
drainage) 
  

Trione Park 
  
  
  
  
DMS/Trione Field 

Qty 4     300’ Softball/Baseball Fields (Lighted) 
Qty 4     Soccer / Lacrosse Fields (Lighted) 
Qty 2     Football / Soccer / Lacrosse Fields (Lighted) 
Qty 1     Dog Park 
  
Qty 1    Multi-use practice field (Lighted) at “Daphne Middle School Field” 

Park Drive  Parking 
  

Joe Patrick Lewis Qty 2     300’ Softball/Baseball Fields – Practice Quality Only (Lighted) 
Qty 1     Playground  
  

Daphne High 
School 

Qty 1     Football Practice Field (“the Pitt”) – Practice Quality Only (Lighted) 
Qty 1     Beach Volleyball Court (COMING SOON) 
  

 

Project Timeline 

 

The proposal shall include a detailed, by phases (to include groupings), project timeline. Each 

phase should cover by (minimum and maximum) the following: 

A. Survey, Design, Specifications and Letting 

B. Required Permitting 

C. Project Construction 

D. Punch List/Closeout 

E. Time (post construction) Facility can be Used 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 78



 

8 | P a g e  
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

PLANS FOR NEW RECREATION FACILITIES 

F. Recommendation of best date for Construction to start 

 

Loss of Use 

 

Proposals submitted may involve improvements, redevelopment, new constructions and/or 

repurposing of all three City-owned properties. For properties proposed to be repurposed, there 

can be no loss of use of the current facility. Meaning: if the proposal recommends removing 

diamonds from Lott Park and replacing them with a Recreation Center then those diamonds may 

not be removed until the new diamonds are constructed and open for unrestricted used. The City 

has a limited number of facilities and any loss use is unacceptable. All timelines and construction 

estimates should factor all facilities being available for unfettered use until such time as 

replacement facilities are open for use. 

 

Facilities to be Maintained in Current Condition 

  

Final proposals shall preserve the following existing recreation facilities: 

 

 Four baseball/softball diamonds at Trione Sports Park 

 Four Soccer Fields at Trione Sports Park 

 Two Football (multipurpose) Fields at Trione Park 

 

These facilities are not subject to or candidates for repurposing, they shall be kept intact along 

with all associated support facilities (drainage, parking, concessions, bathrooms, lighting, etc…). 

 

 

SECTION 4. SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE CITY 

 

1. The Parks and Recreation Director for reference of city history and to act as project 

liaison on behalf of the City 

2. Copies of earlier Preliminary Master Parks/Recreation Plans 

3. Access to GIS Data possessed by the City 

4. Copies of all existing studies, plans, programs, and other data including access to all 

applicable records 

5. Assistance with on-going community engagement 

 

 

SECTION 5. PROJECT BUDGET 

 

The City of Daphne understands that in order to make significant gains in the construction of 

new recreation facilities, there must be an equal capital dollar investment. The proposer’s 

ultimate goal is to deliver the most number of recreation facilities for the best value to the City.  

 

Funding Phases 

 

The scope indicates that the proposal shall be presented by a phasing plan. The City is 

anticipating two to three funding phases as follows: 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 79



 

9 | P a g e  
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

PLANS FOR NEW RECREATION FACILITIES 

 

Two Funding Phases: 

 Phase I -  $5-8 Million Dollars 

 Phase II -  Up to a total of $12 Million Dollars 

 

Three Funding Phases: 

 Phase I -  $4-5 Million Dollars 

 Phase II -  $4-8 Million Dollars 

 Phase III -  Up to a total of $12 Million Dollars 

 

These are ranges and Project cost estimates need to be presented by phases. In addition cost 

estimates can include levels of quality of material and equipment finishes: 

 

 Base-level -  Example: Galvanized Chain-link Fence 

 Mid-level - Example: Vinyl/Powder-Coated Chain-link Fence 

 High-end - Example: Brick Veneer Stem Wall with Coated Fence and Netting    

 

Project Cost Estimates must be inclusive of all costs associated with the described recreation 

facility. The project(s) proposed are to be “turnkey” in their delivery to the City. However, the 

use of add-alternatives should be used by the proposers for the following scope of work items: 

 

1. Landscaping (beyond turf on fields and vegetative stabilization and erosion control) 

2. Supplemental Landscape Irrigation 

3. Parking/Roadway Lighting 

 

Consulting Fees 

 

Proposed Fees need to be presented as a percentage of the construction cost for the following 

activities by phase: 

 

 Project Design: Survey, Design, Plans & Specifications, and Letting 

 Special Services: Environmental, Ecological, Historical, Geotechnical, etc… 

 Project Management: Construction Engineering & Inspection and Material Testing 

 

Respondents shall include a detailed budget with a breakdown, fee schedule and price for each 

for each phase of the project proposed. Note: the selected consultant will enter into an agreement 

with the City defining the term and parameters of fees to be paid for services rendered. 

 

SECTION 6. CONSULTANT SELECTION 

 

The Selection Panel will consist of the full City Council. The Mayor, Recreation Board 

Chairman, Recreation Board Council Liaison and Recreation Director will serve as advisory 

panel to the City Council. The Advisory Panel will review submitted proposals and select 

qualified firms to present to the City Council starting at the Work Session on February 9, 2015. 

 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 80



 

10 | P a g e  
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

PLANS FOR NEW RECREATION FACILITIES 

Selection Criterion 

 

Proposals will be reviewed and evaluated on the basis of the following weighted criteria:  

 

1. Creativity and Uniqueness of Plan  20% 

2. Qualifications and Experience   20% 

3. Proposed Project Timeline    10% 

4. Panel’s Confidence in Proposer’s Plan  30% 

5. Total Cost & Fee Structure Proposal   20% 

Total       100% 

 

1. Creativity and Uniqueness of Plan – The City is looking for a firm that can develop a 

plan that delivers the maximum amount of quality facilities for the budget outlined.  The 

panel will evaluate how the proposer uses the City’s current facilities to their maximum 

capacities while adding new facilities to address current and future needs. The City desire 

that the proposer submit a plan that brands the City and delivers a recreation facility 

upgrade and improvement that is unique to the City of Daphne and sets a standard for the 

eastern shore.  

2. Qualifications and Experience - Provide a statement that portrays your firm's 

qualifications as related to the local office and experience in relation to the described 

work. The response should address the following: 

a. General qualifications and experience of the firm. Please limit information to that 

which is specific to the local office. 

b. Specific areas of expertise applicable to the described work. 

c. Similar projects, by type, location and total project cost, which have been 

performed by the firm. Do not include projects that current personnel performed 

for another firm. (Please note proposals may be excluded from further 

consideration if projects are included that the firm did not perform) 

d. If including a sub-consultant, include their role in the described work: prime 

consultant or sub-consultant 

3. Proposed Project Timeline – The Panel will judge the overall presented timeline for the 

project as well as consider the proposer’s ability to insure no loss of use of current 

facilities during construction and improvements. 

4. Panel’s Confidence in Proposer’s Plan – The City Council will determine this through 

their experience with the proposer’s presentation and their interpretation of the quality, 

feasibility, organization and detail of the proposer’s submittal.  

5. Total Cost & Fee Structure Proposal – The panel will consider the details, options, add 

alternatives, etc. presented in the construction cost estimates, how well proposal fits 

within the city project budget funding phases and consulting fee structure proposed. 

 

The City of Daphne reserves the right to (1) reject any or all proposals not in compliance with 

RFP procedures if it is in the best interest of the public to do so, (2) to take no action on the 

accepted RFP’s (3) waive informalities in the proposals, (4) to select the proposals which appear 

to be in the best interest of the City, (5) limit the number of qualifying firms to present before the 

City Council and (6) select multiple firms and divide the work based on a negotiated scope of 

work. 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 81



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 82



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 83



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 84



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 85



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-53           
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY OF DAPHNE’S 

PARTICIPATION IN THE STATE OF ALABAMA SEVERE 

WEATHER PREPAREDNESS TAX HOLIDAY FOR THE YEAR 

2015 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama as follows: 

 

  Section 1. Section 4 of Alabama Act No. 2012-256 grants municipal 

governments authority to provide for the exemption of certain covered items from the payment 

of municipal SEVERE WEATHER PREPAREDNESS TAX during a period commencing at 

12:01 a.m. on February 20, 2015 and ending at twelve midnight February 22, 2015 under the 

same terms, conditions and definitions as provided for by the State of Alabama SEVERE 

WEATHER PREPAREDNESS TAX holiday. 

 

  Section 2. The City of Daphne grants approval for the exemption of certain 

covered items from the payment of municipal SEVERE WEATHER PREPAREDNESS TAX for 

the period commencing at 12:01 a.m. February 20, 2015 and ending at twelve midnight February 

22, 2015 under the same terms, conditions and definitions as provided for by Act No. 2012-256 

and Alabama Department of Revenue Rule 11-51-210(e). 

 

  Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 

this the _______ day of  _____________, 2014. 

 

 

     _____________________________ 

     Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 86



ORDINANCE 2014  - 46 
 

ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 CAPITAL & NEW PERSONNEL BUDGET 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the FY 2015 Operating Budget on September 23, 2014 
where total revenues exceeded appropriations in the amount of $1,554,331 and general fund 
revenues exceeded appropriations in the amount of $620,025; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Mayor of the City of Daphne has submitted to the City Council capital  and 
new personnel requests for Fiscal Year 2015 which begins October 1, 2014 and ends 
September 30, 2015 based on City Department requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and considered such proposed capital and 
personnel requests; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that funds are available for certain Fiscal 2015 
appropriations and such appropriations should be considered, approved and made a part of the 
Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed such requests and prioritized them 
according to needs and available funds and has incorporated them into the FY15 Capital and 
New Personnel Budget; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
that the Fiscal Year 2015 Capital and New Personnel Budget is hereby appropriated in the 
amount of $634,007 ($410,815 for capital equipment and $223,192 for personnel requests) of 
which $467,507 are from the general fund and $166,500 are from the lodging tax fund. Such 
appropriations are itemized in the attached lists and made a part hereof. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     
day of  ________________    , 2014. 
 
         

_________________________________ 

                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
       
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 87



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 88



October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 89



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE 2014-47 

An Ordinance Amending Ordinance 2002-34 / Garbage Collection 

And Amending the FY2015 Budget for the increased Garbage Collection Fee 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on September 23, 

2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved a garbage fee increase of $1.50 per month per household (from 

$13.90/month to $15.40/month) in ordinance 2014-44 resulting in an additional $135,000 in annual garbage 

collection revenues ; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council has determined 

that certain budget amendments should be approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, after further review Council recommends an additional garbage fee increase of $0.60 per 

month per household (from $15.40 to $16.00/month). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, that 

FY2015 Budget be amended to include the increased garbage collection fee to begin on January 1, 2015 

and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget in the amount of $6,750    

  

BE IT ORDAINED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA THAT 

THE ABOVE ORDINANCE IS HEREBY AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION 1:    Whereby Section VI of Ordinance 2002-34 set fees for the collection and 

disposal of garbage and rubbish is hereby repealed and replaced by the following  

  

 SECTION 9:  FEES FOR COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL 

Every person or persons occupying a building or dwelling unit which generates garbage 

or rubbish within the city limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama shall be subject to a fee 

of $16.00 per month.  Such fees for the collection and disposal of garbage and rubbish 

shall be subject to change from time to time as deemed necessary in order to cover the 

increased cost of collection and disposal services.  Any change in the fee for such 

services must be publicly advertised at least thirty (30) days before the effective date of 

the change. 

 

 SECTION 2:  EFFECTIVE DATE.     This ordinance will be in full force and effect January 

1, 2015. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA this ______ day of __________, 2014. 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 90



ORDINANCE 2014-48 
Appropriating Funds for Emergency Watershed Protection on Private Property:  Mazie’s 

Gulch & Palmetto Court (Creekside) 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget on 
September 23, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of 
the Fiscal Year 2014 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5" of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, watersheds and their drainage systems located 
within the City of Daphne sustained severe damage and require emergency repairs in order to 
prevent further impacts to the City's watersheds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has made application with the NRCS (Natural Resources 
Conservation Service) through their Emergency Watershed Protection (EWP) program for 75% 
reimbursement of expenses incurred for such private watershed emergency repairs as 
described below; and 
 
WHEREAS, these two private property EWP Projects have been selected by NRCS for 
exigency funding with the City of Daphne as the “Sponsor” and Ordinance#2014-36 was already 
approved for a Sponsor match of $11,211 and an additional appropriation of $12,606 is 
needed to complete the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems these private projects key to the recovery 
efforts associated with this rain event and the repair of these private property watershed 
issues is necessary to preserve the health, safety, and convenience of the public. 

2. Fiscal Year 2014 Budget is hereby amended to include an additional appropriation 
from the General Fund in the amount of $12,606 for a total City match  of $23,817 for 
this EWP Project: 

Project Name 
Property 
Owners 

Construction Engineering Total 
 Sponsor 

Match 

DAP-14-003 Mazie’s Gulch 
(2 Locations) 

Bradley/ 
Davenport 

$84,951.99 $8,495.20 $93,447.19 $23,817.07 

 
3. The City will serve solely as EWP Project Sponsor and this is not a Public Works 

Project, the City will assume no short or long-term maintenance/repair responsibility for 
the work performed, all future maintenance/repair will be the responsibility of the private 
property owner. 

4. The Environmental Program Manager/Public Works Director or the Mayor is authorized 
to coordinate application with the NRCS for the reimbursement of such funds and to sign 
and execute all documents associated with the described projects. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this 18th day  
of August, 2014. 
 
              

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 91



 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2014-49 
 

JOB RECLASSIFICATION: FINANCE DIRECTOR 
 

An Ordinance Approving the Job Reclassification of  
the Finance Director 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2004-52 as adopted January 3, 2005 established the City of 
Daphne Job Classification Schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014 which funded the position of the Finance Director; and 
 
WHEREAS, after further review, the City Council recommends that the Finance Director 
position should be reclassified within the existing Job Classification Schedule. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that:  
 

1) The authorized position of the Finance Director with a Grade 36, shall be 
reclassified to Grade 40 and the existing Job Classification Schedule shall be 
amended to include such revision; and    
 

2) The total annual increase of such reclassification is $44,243 ($38,311 wages 
and $5,932 benefits) and shall be appropriated from the general fund; and 

 
3) The Mayor is hereby authorized to advertise for the position of Finance 

Director at Steps 1 through 25.   
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this 
______ day of ___________, 2014. 
 
      
      
       ______________________________ 
       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 92



 
ORDINANCE 2014-50 

 
JOB RECLASSIFICATION: CIVIC CENTER DIRECTOR 

 
An Ordinance Approving the Job Reclassification of  

the Civic Center Director to the Convention / Visitor’s Bureau & Civic Center 
Director 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2004-52 as adopted January 3, 2005 established the City of 
Daphne Job Classification Schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014 which funded the position of the Civic Center Director; and 
 
WHEREAS, after further review by the Archer Company, it has been determined that the 
Civic Center Director position should be reclassified to the Convention / Visitor’s Bureau & 
Civic Center Director within the existing Job Classification Schedule. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that:  
 

1) The authorized position of the Civic Center Director with a Grade 29, shall be 
reclassified to the Convention / Visitor’s Bureau & Civic Center Director at 
Grade 32 and the existing Job Classification Schedule shall be amended to 
include such revision; and    

 
2) The additional responsibilities of the new position related to tourism and 

conventions require additional operating appropriations from the General 
Fund as follows: 

 
a. Office Supplies $  2,000 
b. Advertising $20,000 
c. Travel  $  3,000 
d. Marketing  $12,000 

TOTAL:  $37,000 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this 
______ day of ___________, 2014. 
 
      
      
     __________________________________ 
     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 93



ORDINANCE 2014-51 
 

Appropriation for Appraisal, Survey, Title Search and Associated Closing 
Fees for Donated Property Located at Park Drive & Pine Hill Drive 

 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, an offer has been made by the property owner for property located 
near Park Drive and Pine Hill Drive; and 
 
WHEREAS,  there are appraisal, survey, title search and other closing fees 
associated with the donation of such property ; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds from the General Fund are hereby appropriated and made a 
part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget in the amount of $7,500 for the appraisal, 
survey, and associated closing fees for the property located at Park Drive and Pine 
Hill Drive properties: 
 

 PPIN#48403 -   2.92 Acres 

 PPIN#55199 -    .85 Acres 

 PPIN#234784 -1.05 Acres 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________  , 2014. 
 
 
             

_________________________________ 
                                                                      Dane Haygood, Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

October 20, 2014 Council Meeting 94


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL
	Council Minutes
	Council Work Session Minutes
	Lions Club
	BEAUTIFICTION AWARD
	America Recycles Day 2014
	Proclamation Backup - FLYER
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance Minutes 10-13-14(2)
	B&P Minutes
	Park Drive Parcels Council Packet
	SANTA ROSA HWY 98 LAND DONATIONS
	Timber Creek 7
	Public Safety Minutes
	Backup to Public Safety Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Minutes
	BZA Minutes
	BZA Report
	REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 10-20-2014 Final
	Parade Permit
	Parade Route 4
	NLC Voting Delegate 2014
	2014-53 - RES - Severe Weather ST Holiday 2015
	2014-46 - ORD - FY 2015  New Capital  Personnel (10 1 2014)
	Backup to 2014-46 - ORD
	2014-47 - ORD - FINAL - CHRISTINE - GARBAGE FEE AMENDMENT - 1 50 INCREASE
	2014-48 - RES - Mazie Gulch-Add'l Appropriation-NRCS
	2014-49 - ORD - 2015-Job Reclassification - Finance Director
	2014-50 - ORD - 2015-Job Reclassification - Civic Center Director
	2014-51 - ORD - Park Drive-Pine Hill Donated Property Appraisal   Fees (2)



